
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change,  
Councillor Nick Bennett 
 
MONDAY, 24 JULY 2023 AT 9.00 AM  
 
REMOTE MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 11 July 2023  (Pages 3 - 8) 

 
2.   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct  
 

3.   Urgent items   
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda.  
 

4.   Partnerships for People and Place - Update  (Pages 9 - 12) 
Report by the Assistant Chief Executive  
 

5.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 14 July 2023 
 
Contact Sophie Webb, Governance and Democracy Officer,  
01273 337495 
Email: sophie.webb@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default 
 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 

 

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change, Councillor Nick 
Bennett, on 11 July 2023 at a Remote Meeting via Microsoft Teams  

 

 

Councillor Wendy Maples spoke on items 5 and 6 (see minutes 23 and 24) 

 

18. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 27 JUNE 2023  

 

18.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 27 
June 2023. 

 

19. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 

19.1 There were none. 

 

20. URGENT ITEMS  

 

20.1 There were none. 

 

21. REPORTS  

 

21.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 

 

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

22. CORPORATE OFFICE ESTATE: NEW LEASE FOR ST MARK'S HOUSE, 
EASTBOURNE - REVISED LEASE TERMS FOLLOWING NEGOTIATION  

 

22.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer together with 
written comments from Local Member Councillor Pat Rodohan. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
22.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) note the progress of negotiations with the Landlord for a new lease of St Mark’s House, 
Eastbourne; and 
 
2) delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to: 
 

a) approve the final lease terms, including the most appropriate time period for the new 
lease; 
 
b) authorise the signing and completion of the lease by the Council; 
 
c) serve any necessary notices or counter notices and to surrender the original lease and 
approve any related documentation; and 
 
d) take any other actions considered appropriate to give effect to the above 
recommendations. 

 
REASONS 
 
22.3 Although the proposal, ultimately, is to move to a single office base in Eastbourne, the 
Council needs to ensure that the transition from two to one building is properly planned and 
managed. To ensure a seamless office move and maintain business continuity for key frontline 
services, it is anticipated that twelve to eighteen months will be required to complete the office 
move. 

 

23. FORMER HINDSLAND PLAYING FIELDS, EASTBOURNE ROAD, POLEGATE - 
DISPOSAL OF FREEHOLD  

 

23.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer together with 
exempt information contained in a later agenda item, written comments from Local Member 
Councillor Daniel Shing and written comments from Councillor Stephen Shing. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
23.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) re-declare the Former Hindsland Playing Fields, Polegate (“the Site”) shown in Appendix 1 of 
the report  to be surplus to the requirements of the Council; 
 
2) approve the disposal of the Site in accordance with s123 of the Local Government Act 1972; 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

 
3) delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to agree the terms of the sale to achieve 
best value for the Site in accordance with s.123 of the Local Government Act 1972, including 
but not limited to, (i) determining whether to sell the Site as a single plot or two separate plots 
(being Parcel A and Parcel B) and (ii) proceeding with the next best offer(s) in the event of the 
sale(s) not completing within the expected timelines; and 
 
4) delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to take all actions necessary to give effect to 
the recommendations in the report. 
 
REASONS 
 
23.3 The disposal of this site will result in a capital receipt. Capital receipts are an important 
source of funding, and the Council seeks to maximise the levels of these resources which will 
be available to support the Council’s capital plans and reduce the need to borrow in accordance 
with the Council’s Capital Strategy. 

 

24. UCKFIELD LEISURE CENTRE, UCKFIELD  

 

24.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer together with 
exempt information contained in a later agenda item and written comments from Local Member 
Councillor Claire Dowling. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
24.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) Note the findings of the public consultation on the future community leisure provision at 
Uckfield Leisure Centre that took place between 18 March and 27 May 2023. 
 
2) Approve a 19-year lease extension between East Sussex County Council and Wealden 
District Council to continue ongoing provision for community use of the leisure facilities, 
including the swimming pool at Uckfield Leisure Centre whilst retaining Uckfield College 
curriculum provision. 
 
3) Approve, as an interim measure, a short-term property agreement between East Sussex 
County Council and Wealden District Council for occupation of the Leisure Centre if the 
proposed 19-year lease extension is not completed by 17 July 2023, noting the current lease 
between both parties expires on 16 July 2023. 
 
4) Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to carry out all actions necessary to give 
effect to the recommendations in the report including but not limited to finalising the terms of the 
lease. 
 
REASONS 
 
24.3 East Sussex County Council has been in further discussions with Wealden District 
Council and the College. Wealden District Council has agreed in principle to a new 19-year 
lease with East Sussex County Council for a continuation of all services currently provided, 
subject to approval through Wealden District Council governance processes. The service is to 

Page 5



 

 

 

 

be delivered through their existing leisure partner, Freedom Leisure and will include all wetside 
and dryside activities. The College curriculum use will be unaffected and there will be no 
changes to the provision of the 3G pitch. 

 

25. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  

 

25.1 It was RESOLVED to exclude the public and press for the remaining agenda items on 
the grounds that if the public and press were present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information as specified in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended), namely information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information). 

 

26. FORMER HINDSLAND PLAYING FIELDS, EASTBOURNE ROAD, POLEGATE - 
DISPOSAL OF FREEHOLD - EXEMPT INFORMATION  

 

26.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer which provided 
exempt information in support of an earlier item on the agenda. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
26.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) note the exempt information which supports an earlier agenda item; 
 
2) note the terms on offer detailed in the bids received, acknowledging that the terms may 
change as negotiations are finalised; and 
 
3) note the bids in order of preference, with the preferred bid detailed at Appendix 1 of the 
report. 
 
REASON 
 
26.3 The report contained exempt information in relation to an earlier item on the agenda. 

 

27. UCKFIELD LEISURE CENTRE, UCKFIELD  - EXEMPT INFORMATION  

 

27.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer which provided 
exempt information in support of an earlier item on the agenda. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
27.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to note the exempt information provided in support of an 
earlier agenda item. 

Page 6



 

 

 

 

 
REASONS 
 
27.3 The report contained exempt information in relation to an earlier item on the agenda. 

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change 

Date of meeting: 24 July 2023 

By: Assistant Chief Executive 

Title: 
 

Partnerships for People and Place – Update 

Purpose: To update on the progress with Stage 3 of the Partnerships for 
People and Place Project and to seek approval to accept additional 
grant funding 

  

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change is recommended to:  
 

1) Note the progress of Stage 3 of the Partnerships for People and Place 
Programme; 
 

2) Approve the acceptance by the Council of an additional £100,000 of grant 
funding from central government; and  
 

3) Agree to use the additional funding to provide a grant to Citizen’s Advice 1066.  
 

1 Background  
 

1.1 East Sussex County Council (the ‘Council’) was one of 13 local authorities shortlisted 
to take part in the Partnerships for People and Place (‘PfPP’) Programme.  

 
1.2 The Council’s PfPP project sought to design and pilot ways of more effectively 
tackling fuel poverty and poor energy efficiency. The PfPP programme has a ‘hyper-local’ 
focus, and so our project has focussed primarily on three wards in Hastings and St. 
Leonards: Castle, Central St. Leonards, and Gensing. The focus on these wards was due to 
clear statistics that there is a large proportion of privately rented accommodation, high levels 
of households living in fuel poverty, a high proportion of homes with poor energy efficiency 
and a higher than average proportion of residents who have a limiting long-term illness or 
disability.  
 
1.3 The Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change agreed the Stage 3 Delivery 
Plan for the Council’s PfPP project at his decision making meeting on 13 December 2022. 
This included procurement of a third party provider to deliver an energy efficiency home 
assessment and engagement service, as well as behaviour change work with landlords and 
tenants in the target wards and the provision of one or more grants to existing organisations 
within the voluntary and community sector that are already delivering fuel or energy 
efficiency work in the targeted wards. 
 
2 Supporting information – Progress Update 
 
Energy Efficiency Home Assessment and Engagement Contract 
2.1 The Council ran a Request for Quotation procurement exercise between December 
2022 and January 2023 to seek a third party provider for the energy efficiency home 
assessment and engagement contract. The contract was ultimately awarded to 
RetrofitWorks (the ‘Service Provider’) and the services commenced on 27 February 2023. 
The contract provided for 150 home assessments and Whole House Plans, together with up 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



to £200 worth of small measures per property (funded by the PfPP project). In addition, the 
contract included the provision of advice and guidance to residents about how they can 
make their home more energy efficient and also support to help them access any available 
government funding to cover or contribute to the cost of any larger scale improvement works 
that may be required for their home.  
 
2.2 Since then, 3481 properties within the three target wards have received letters 
notifying them of the Council’s PfPP project, and informing them that the Service Provider 
will be visiting properties within their area on the Council’s behalf. The letter invited residents 
to take part in an online attitudinal survey and offered (subject to income-based eligibility 
criteria) a free home assessment worth £500 and the possibility of small energy efficiency 
improvements being carried out within their home. Paper copies of the survey were also 
made available to residents upon request.  By the time the survey closed on 2 July 2023, 
100 survey responses were received by the Council (87 online and 13 paper responses).  

 
2.3 The door-knocking phase of the PfPP Project completed at the end of June 2023. 
150 Home Assessments and Whole House Plans were completed by the Service Provider. 
Minor measures were carried out at 67 properties, which accounts for all those where minor 
measures were needed and the resident gave consent for the works to be completed.  
 
Behaviour Change Focus Groups  
2.4  In March, the PfPP Project Team delivered two focus groups alongside Public Health 
colleagues. The workshops were held with tenants and landlords to gather feedback on 
proposed changes to the Warm Home Check Service’s communications. This involved 
tenants and landlords who were engaged with the Stage 1 research as well as some 
additional participants that were recruited specifically for these groups (nine tenants and six 
landlords). In addition, both focus groups had attendees from local government.  
 
2.5 The aim of the tenant focus group was to test nine different versions of a new flyer for 
the Warm Home Check service. Participants were also asked to feedback on a series of 
images and logos, the use of QR codes and some different styles of wording. The purpose 
of the landlord focus group was to test the existing Warm Home Check letter compared to a 
new letter prepared by the PfPP Project Team which incorporates behaviour change theory 
and techniques. The new letter was inarguably more popular with both landlords and local 
government colleagues.  
 
2.6 Feedback from tenants and landlords from the Stage 1 and Stage 3 research and 
from the Stage 2 workshops has been used to create new leaflets to raise awareness of our 
Warm Home Check service among residents. A new letter encouraging landlords to take 
part and to provide the landlord contribution for improvement work is being finalised. These 
will be used as part of our Autumn campaign. 
 
Grants to the voluntary and community sector  
2.7 Following the Lead Member’s decision on 13 December 2022 to agree to use funding 
from the PfPP project to award one or more grants to organisations that are already 
supporting vulnerable people through the winter months, the Council identified Citizens 
Advice 1066 (‘CA1066’) as a suitable organisation to deliver this aspect of the project. 
CA1066 were already delivering measures through the Council’s Household Support Fund 
and elements of that work were closely aligned with the aims of PfPP.  
 
2.8 The Council entered into a grant agreement with CA1066 on 14 April 2023 for 
£40,000. With this grant, CA1066 are able to deliver targeted measures, such as the 

Page 10



provision of fuel vouchers and winter warmth packs, as well as support with utility bills and 
emergency grants to residents within the target wards. 
 
2.9 Through the close liaison with colleagues at the Department for Levelling Up, 
Housing and Communities and the Department for Energy Security and Net Zero as part of 
the PfPP Programme, the Council has been offered the opportunity to receive an additional 
£100,000 worth of grant funding for delivery of the PfPP project, with agreement for the 
funding period to be extended to the end of the financial year 2023/24 to ensure that funding 
is available during the winter months when residents in the target ward are most likely to 
experience the impact of fuel poverty.  
 
2.10  The Council has liaised with CA1066 who have confirmed that they could use this 
funding to deliver more of the measures identified within the grant agreement as well as 
holistic support, such as energy and financial capability support to help people build longer-
term financial resilience and reduce dependence on vouchers and grants. In addition, the 
extra funding will enable CA1066 to undertake home visits to vulnerable residents who may 
otherwise not have been able to access support due to a lack of transport, physical disability, 
digital exclusion or language or other barriers. 
 
3 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations    

 
3.1 The Council has made significant progress in delivering the Stage 3 Delivery Plan 
since it was agreed by the Lead Member in December 2022. The Lead Member is therefore 
recommended to note the progress made against the Stage 3 Delivery Plan to date. 
  
3.2 The target wards were selected due to the high levels of households living in fuel 
poverty, a high proportion of homes with poor energy efficiency and a higher than average 
proportion of residents who have a limiting long-term illness or disability. The additional grant 
funding available from central government will enable CA1066 to continue the positive work 
that they are currently delivering through the PfPP project to tackle fuel poverty in these 
target wards as well as provide more holistic support to vulnerable residents. The Lead 
Member is therefore recommended to approve the Council accepting the additional 
£100,000 funding from central government and agree that this be used to top-up the existing 
grant with CA1066.  
 

 

PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive 

 
 
Contact Officer: Bekki Freeman  Tel:  01273 482355 
       E-mail: bekki.freeman@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
Local Members:  Councillor Daniel and Councillor Webb 
 
Background Documents: None 
 

Page 11

mailto:bekki.freeman@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 11 July 2023
	4 Partnerships for People and Place - Update

